

NIYI MAKINDE

## NIYI MAKINDE RUNNING LIKE THE DEER



## Copyright © 2021 by Niyi Makinde

All rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording, scanning, or otherwise without written permission from the publisher. It is illegal to copy this book, post it to a website, or distribute it by any other means without permission.

#### First edition

This book was professionally typeset on Reedsy.
Find out more at reedsy.com

## Contents

Acknowledgement				
1	MOVING FROM THE VALLEY TO THE MOUNTAINTOP	1		
2	THE DEER	5		
3	THE UNIQUENESS OF THE DEER	9		
4	YOU SHALL NOT STUMBLE	11		
5	THE SPEED OF GOD	13		
6	EXPERIENCING SUPERNATURAL SPEED	15		
7	FAITH WORK: SEEING AND SPEAKING	19		
8	THE FEET OF THE DEER	21		
9	RUNNING LIKE A DEER	23		
10	THE THINKING OF A DEER	25		
11	THE JUMPING OF A DEER	28		
12	HOW TO RUN LIKE A DEER	30		
About the Author				
Also by Niyi Makinde				

## Acknowledgement

Consistent flow of inspiration from God brings directional progress to men. God is praised for the supply of inspiration.

The amazing Emmanuel Ojodun worked on the finality of this book while Kehinde Otesile designed the cover page. Both of you know I love you.

My love remains ever consistent to all pastors, leaders, and members of Rebirth Global Church. I love you!

## MOVING FROM THE VALLEY TO THE MOUNTAINTOP

#### Habakkuk 3:19

"The Lord God is my strength; He will make my feet like deer's feet, and He will make me walk on my high hills."

Many people are in the valley only few people are on the mountaintop. The valley is for low status people while the mountaintop is for high status people. When God wants to change the flow of your life or the movement of your life, He will command a change in your spiritual environment. There are valleys and mountains in the spirit realm. Where you stand over there determines where you will end over here.

You may change where you stay in the earth realm but that doesn't translate to change in the spirit realm. Where you stand over there determines what you see over here. Many people think that if they can leave their country to another country, things will go all right for them but they failed to understand that whatever happens to a person in the physical is just a

manifestation of what has happened in the spiritual world. Just like you can change location in the physical, you can also change location — where you stand — in the spirit realm. How can you change where you stand in the spirit realm? That is simple. The way you change where you stand in the spirit realm is to change what you believe. And your belief cannot change until you have new information. Until the belief in your heart change, where you stand in the spirit realm cannot change. What you believe in your heart will determine where you are over there.

In the book of revelation, John was told to come hither. Many assumed that the spirit realm seemed to be up above the sky, but you have to understand that it is dimensional. Even though, John was up, he was still told to come up. That clearly shows that there are higher heights over there. If your life will be meaningful and impactful, God will change your stand in the realm of the spirit from valley to the mountain. You cannot see beyond where you stand. What you can see when you are on the mountain cannot be compared to what you can see when you stand in the valley. Those who stand in the valley will always look up to those who stand on the mountain. The moment God moves you from the valley to the mountain, He has exalted you. It is time to be lifted to your mountaintop now.

Many people have said, we don't need to be exalted again after we come into Christ. Their belief is that since all believers have been exalted with Christ, they don't need any exaltation again. Many who talk about the new creation realities assume that some believers that prays for exaltation don't yet comprehend their sitting status with Christ in the heavenlies. If it's true that we don't need exaltation again, then James and Peter's counsel that you should humble yourself under the mighty hand of God so you can be lifted in due season is not correct. Could

we assume that Peter and James didn't know that believers have been exalted with Christ? That is not possible. The fact is that you have been lifted with Christ in the heavenlies but you need to be lifted every season.

There are notable people of the past who are no longer notable. Their relevance has gone into extinction. When you see people who are relevant in the past, seen as noble but for some unknown reasons, after few years lost their relevance, the reason was that they were lifted last season but not lifted at another season.

The mountain of last season is the valley of this season. The high place you stood last season is the lowland of this season. Many people are celebrating the lifting of last season not knowing they are back to the valley. I pray that God will shift you from the valley to the mountain.

I am confident that I cannot lose relevance not because I have special revelation. You should be confident that you cannot lose relevance because you know what to do always. There is a God that lifts men. It will be a taboo to remain in a class forever. So, the key is to always humble yourself under the mighty hand of God.

Young people who are still fed may not comprehend this insight. People who depend on people to give them money may not understand this. For those who understand life, I hope you know that your lifting determines your finance. At a level, certain amount of money will move you but at another level, you will desire something huge. A believer is exalted with Christ but you must be exalted every season of your life.

The fact is that if you are not exalted to new height but remain where you were in the past, you will soon discover that those who look up to you yesterday will not be drawn to your direction again. You've got to know that in the realm of the spirit and life,

there is room for overtaking. There is a way God move people from the level they were to the level they should be. I pray for you that whatever force or power that wants to keep you at your current level for long will lose its power over you.

Desire doesn't equal manifestation. Your desire should push you to do the needful. Your desire should push you to fast, pray, learn or act. If the same kind of people in your life for the last five years are the same kind of people in your life now, then you are in the valley. If your finances still remain at the same level it was two years ago, then, you are in the valley.

Ezekiel found dry bones in the valley not on mountain. You will always find dry bones in the valleys. When problems become so much for you to settle, you are in the valley. Sometimes, God will want you to provide solutions to the problems in the valley where you are before He promotes you to the mountain.

On the mountain, blessings are brought to you. People don't forget those on the mountain. It is those in the valley that are always forgotten. You cannot be on the mountain and not be remembered. The reason people forget your phone number is because you are in the valley. I have been there before. If important people don't think of calling you in one year, then, you are in the valley. Those in the valley will always need help while those on the mountain will always render help. It is time for you to be moved from the valley to the mountain. May the hand of the Lord come upon you to move you from where you are now to where you should be in Jesus name.

## THE DEER

Scripture says God will make my feet like the deer's feet (Psalm 18:33). The strongest of all animals is not lion. There is an animal that is the strongest both on land and in the sea. That animal is known as leviathan.

Do you know that location is not a barrier for leviathan? Throw a lion into the sea then you will know a fish is stronger than a lion. But Leviathan is an animal that is strong on the land and in the sea. Some bible translators refer to Leviathan as crocodile. Well, that is not correct. Some assume it can only dwell in the sea. That assumption is wrong too. According to God, Leviathan is the monarch (king) of all the children of pride (Job 41:34) and lion is one of the children of pride.

There is an animal that warriors ride to the battle which is the horse. The horse is devoid of understanding. Warriors goes with it to the battle because of its strength and speed. The horse will see death like this and still run ahead to meet it. God didn't create the horse with understanding but He craftily created it with strength and speed.

The Leviathan is the strongest of all creatures. But with its strength, there is no warrior that can ride it to battle. There is no hope of overcoming leviathan but no man can ride it to battle. It is for battle but will not help you fight your battle. God creatively invested the greatest strength in this animal unlike others. The horse is known for strength more than speed. Warriors go to battle with the horse not necessarily for its speed but for strength.

There is an animal faster than the horse. That animal is the deer. The speed of the deer is more than the speed of the horse. If you want to know about strength, you will need to study animals like Leviathan, horse, lion among few others. To study strategy, study the eagle, lion, ants, snake, among few. On the path to speed, it is best to study animals like horse, eagle, deer among few.

The eagle cannot have speed on land but in the air. The eagle can soar higher and faster than every other birds. Among the animal creature that walk on the land, the deer is highly exceptional with its speed. Some bible translation refers to the deer as hind. The animals that has the greatest speed among the creatures on land is the deer.

It takes the combination of strength, strategy and speed to take over. You cannot take over a place, sector, region or nation if you cannot combine these three elements mentioned. There is no place you want to take over that hasn't been occupied. You take a place that hasn't been occupied, but you can only take over a place that has been occupied.

The deer is not known for strength or strategy. It is known for speed. There are people who seems not to have strength or strategy but have inexplicable progress. The speed of their life is obvious through their results and achievement. Anyone that achieve results within three years what took another to achieve within thirty years has speed. It takes supernatural speed to do and achieve in a short time what took another a life time.

In life when you have common results, people will see you as equal. What singles you out of equality is unusual results. There is something God can do for you that will make those you see as leaders today see you as a leader tomorrow.

Of all the animals, when an eagle sees the storm coming, it rejoices because it's an opportunity for it to soar higher. There is an animal that is not bothered when it sees the mountain. The lion or horse may see the mountain as a problem, but this animal see the mountain as an opportunity to go higher. The same mountain that becomes a limitation for the going up of others becomes an opportunity for it to go higher. This animal doesn't have too much strength. If it come in contact with a lion, the lion will kill the animal. But there is something God put in the leg of that animal – that's speed – that makes it escape all problem. I never knew speed was a special ability God gave an animal until I studied the deer.

When the deer runs on the land, it has the same speed with a horse. The speed of the deer doesn't manifest to its fullest potential until it cross to the mountain. You will be amazed by the speed of the deer by the way it climbs the mountain. In other words, what scares others becomes an opportunity for it to go higher.

When the deer walks, it moves it feet within two feet to three feet. If it runs on low land, it takes one step between ten feet to thirteen feet. But when the animal begins to climb up, it takes one leap between twenty-five feet to thirty-one feet. In other words, when the deer begin to run, it will make in one step what

may take other animals ten steps to make. The moment the deer begin to move on the mountains, it doesn't move step by step, but in leaps. One step of a deer is what others consider as a leap.

Many have argued on the speed of the deer and mouse. The fact is that both run fast. The mouse for its size can run faster in a house but can never run faster than the deer in climbing a mountain. A move the mouse can make within eighty seconds; a deer can make a jump of it within two seconds. The mouse doesn't leap but the deer does. Nobody in the scripture ever said he wants to run like a mouse. No. You should desire to run like a deer for with that, you will be able to make leaps.

Quantum leap is about running like a deer. People may not see the steps you make but they cannot deny the fact that you have progressed. A leap will make you the lead in your sphere. Only those who make the leap end up making the wave. With the dimension of running like a deer, you are about to get a kind of results that logic cannot explain.

## THE UNIQUENESS OF THE DEER

Having read about the deer in different scriptural passages, I suddenly desire to know about this unique animal. I was desperate to know the quality that makes this animal so special.

The animal known as deer is known for swiftness, speed and gracefulness. A deer can walk, jump, run and climb scaring height. A deer doesn't slip when climbing higher and higher. They are surefooted.

In life, there will always be desire and opportunity to climb higher and higher like the deer, we will be surefooted and will not slip. Many fall when climbing new height but those who are like the deer will never fall. You cannot be like a deer and not make progress at the next level of your life.

It is not about going higher; it is about going higher faster. Too many glory in smallness and slowness. It can be very painful when you get to discover that there is a better way to do things fast. Any animal can run, but the deer is different because of its swiftness. The speed at which it runs cannot be compared to any other.

I believe that there is a grace for speed that empowers men to achieve in a short time the task and result that took others their life time. The prove that you are the upgraded version of the past generation in your sphere is that you have discovered a faster way to doing your work. Those who accomplish great results fast are the ones that run like a deer. If others don't desire to find out how you were able to achieve all you have achieved in a short time, then, you are not like a deer.

When the deer runs, its running is equated to be leaping. Don't just run, leap! For those who have God on their side, their lives should be a revelation of how to do great things better and faster. I love speed. I have the grace for it. Maybe that is why I am possessed with the speed mentality. I just want things to be done faster. I understand that certain things require patience. But anything that requires actions will always need us to show it the dimension of a deer.

Your life doesn't mirror glory if what took the previous generation their life time also take you your life time to accomplish. Like David, you must trust God to make your feet like the deer's feet so you can run faster in life. You must walk with the consciousness that whatever took others their life time to accomplish must take you a short time to accomplish. I pray that God will show you His mercy and make your feet like a deer's feet so you can do in a short time what took your antecedents their life time.

## YOU SHALL NOT STUMBLE

Jude 24 says "Now to Him who is able to keep you from stumbling...
"

The deer is created to be surefooted. In other words, it cannot fall. When you run like a deer, you shall not stumble because the deer never stumble when running.

It is God that will keep you from stumbling. Those who rely on God's direction and follow His guidance will never fall. It can be very painful when you get into unbearable situation that brings you low. God has to keep you and save you from falling.

If God will keep you from falling, you must be ready to yield to His instruction and guidance. To assume that God will keep you from stumbling and failed to receive his instruction is out of it.

Anyone God keeps from falling will not fall into the trap their gets past heroes down. Your life should be a proof that God keeps men from falling. Only those that are kept from stumbling will continue to scale new height without stress. When you begin to go higher and higher, you must trust God to keep you from

falling. If a lizard falls from a mountain down, nobody will give attention. But if an elephant falls down from the same mountain, it will attract the attention of multitudes and such often end in mockery. If you stumble before you rise in life, you may not be mocked for nobody see you. But if you fall after you have gotten to greater height, you will regret going up in the first place.

The moment you get into the limelight, you must trust God to make you surefooted. That is what the deer has. God made it to be surefooted that as he leaps higher and higher, it will not slip. Normally, coming down from the mountain makes many slip, how much more going up the mountain? But this gracious deer was created by God to never experience what is called slippery. I believe God can do the same for you. I believe God can keep you from slippery, falling and stumbling. What gets others down should never get you down.

An understanding the Spirit of God gave me is that character is what makes people stumble. The way they talk, act, respond, relate with others. And the origin of all started from their thinking. If you can control the way you think, you can control your character. Anyone that will not fall must sustain the fear of God and honor for men in his or her heart. To fear God is to reverence God. Anyone that regularly considers God's opinion in a matter has the fear of God. If you can fear God, He will keep you from stumbling.

If God can keep you from being proud, you will not stumble. In fact, God Himself bring down the proud. Those who walk in pride He is able to bring down. God doesn't keep the proud, He even bring them down. If you will not fall in your life, be such that is humble. The humility of your heart is the sure foot that will get you running like the deer.

## THE SPEED OF GOD

When you move at the speed of God, you don't move the normal way. God has no time. The Past, present and future are all NOW before God. The next thirty years of your life is now before God. Those who understand the time of God are the ones that will quickly have insight into the speed of God. You should know that if God doesn't need to wait for tomorrow to come before He does something in your tomorrow, then, you should know that time is not a barrier for God.

Human speed is determined by time. When you move by supernatural speed, you move by the time of God and the time of God is NOW. Two years ahead on earth is now before God. There is no day and night with God, so all the time exist before Him. One time, I did the exact thing that cost another man twenty-two years within two years. And I did it successfully and even exceeded the number of that man. When you move with the speed of God, you will achieve results speedily.

You have to see your next level before you go into your next level. What's the Lord showing you? If the Lord has shown you,

then, you have it.

Just as the speed of deer cannot be compared to the speed of any animal, also, the speed of God cannot be compared to anyone else. Your life, work and achievement will be on the leap if you apply the speed of God. It takes a woman nine months to have a baby, but it takes God few hours (not even up to a day) to make a complete and adult man. Same He did with the woman. Do you now see the speed of God? You cannot catch up with the speed of God if you cannot think like God.

Only those who think like God can speed like Him. It is through your thinking that you can catch up with the frequency of God. You cannot think like God if you cannot access His thoughts. You have to know what He thinks before you can think like Him. The thoughts of God are the words of God. If you can access His words, you will access His thoughts. Therefore, if you can get the word of God into your heart and understand it, you will move with the speed of God.

## EXPERIENCING SUPERNATURAL SPEED

There are five things that facilitate supernatural speed

### 1. Vision from God

You can't see and not speed. Those who see are those who speed. Vision is about knowing the destination before you set out. You will keep dragging your feet when you are not sure of where you are going. On the path to speed, it is essential that you see where you are going before you jump out. Even though the deer runs with speed, it is so sure that it is heading somewhere on top of the mountain.

When there is no vision, there can't be motion. It is vision that gives motion to your life. The clearer you see, the more your speed. You cannot see far and not run fast. Stagnation is the neighbor of a visionless person. Whoever lacks vision is going nowhere. Without vision, anywhere you find yourself is your destination.

#### 1. The hand of God

The facilitator of supernatural speed is the hand of the Lord. When the hand of the Lord comes upon you, the power of the Lord comes upon you. The power of the Lord is not just to heal the sick or deliver the oppressed. It is to also make you do what ten men can do. When the power of the Lord came upon Samson, He alone carried the gate of the city.

Before now there was something I used to do that takes me a month. I never knew that I could do that thing within two days and complete it successfully. You see, when supernatural speed comes upon you, it's a sign the hand of the Lord is upon you. When the hand of the Lord is on you, you will begin to think like a computer. When the hand of the Lord comes upon you, you begin to think fast. I believe that solution shouldn't be long before it comes to you.

### 1. The help of God

The moment the hand of the Lord comes upon you, help comes to you speedily. The help of the Lord is when God decides to make things easy for you and possible for you.

The help of God will make God to use the brain of others to think about you or your work. Your brain is too small to think about all you need to do. There are insight, ideas and solutions that must come through others to you. Real help is when God occupy the mind of others to think of how to help you.

Recently, I got occupied in my mind. I was just thinking of how to share certain strategies with someone. I was opened to God in prayers to tell me what I should instruct the person to do so he can advance in his field. That person didn't send me to do that for him, I was just occupied in my thinking about him.

#### 1. The favor of God

When the hand of the Lord comes upon you, the favor of the Lord is activated. The favor of the Lord does something unique. There are some opportunities you can't create and some personality you are too small to meet. When favor set in, those high figures will begin to think about how to connect with you. There are some people who visit the presidential villa but there are some people the president will beg them to come.

The favor of the Lord brings to you the opportunity and personality needed for your next level. Years ago, there was someone I wanted to meet personally, I was very eager but now it's that person who is eager to connect with me. There is something that must change about your life. The moment the change takes place, the opportunity will come to you. All you need is not far from you. All you need will not come to the old personality of yourself. You have to be transformed before a new you can appear.

### 1. The resources of God

The hand of the Lord compels resources to come to you. Sometimes ago, we needed to do something in our ministry. Somehow, a brother and I were on a phone conversation and the person told me he's led to get what we needed for us. I was amazed, but I have learned over time that when God set in, His

resources will set in. Whatever resources you need will begin to come to your direction in Jesus name.

## FAITH WORK: SEEING AND SPEAKING

You have to take over in your imagination before you take over in the world. Be sensitive to what God will tell you.

If you claim God has spoken to you and there is no way to confirm it, you have to make a check, do you truly hear God? God speaks and when God speaks, He confirms His word.

Some people said that being a son of God is superior to man of God. Well, that's grammar is not correct. In the Bible, we see sons of God and men of God. There is nowhere in the scripture that Elijah was called the son of God. Elijah was absolutely called a man of God. There is a grace God put on His servants that qualifies them to carry out special assignment.

There is no distance in the realm of the spirit. Let me also say that there is no traffic in the realm of the spirit. Sometimes God permit you to go through certain things for Him to prove his power to you or for you to discover your power. God has His power and men also have their power. When we read the story of Daniel, we sometimes think God came to shut the mouth of

the lion but when we read the book of Hebrew, it clearly stated that men through faith shut the mouth of lion.

Daniel told the king that God had sent His angel to shut the mouth of the lions. The Hebrew writer wrote that men through faith shut the mouth of lion. We have to know that it is the faith action of Daniel that released the angels. If it is faith, it therefore means that Daniel spoke to the lions. Faith will always speak to whatever it wants to clear off.

If it is faith, talking is involved. We thought Daniel was thrown into the den and God sent His angel. Well, that is correct in a way but you have to know that Daniel spoke. If you don't speak, the angels of the Lord won't go to come to work. Angels are always waiting for direction to be given to them.

Do you know it's possible for angelic assistance to be sent to a person and such angel is arrested in the realm of the spirit? We are in the new testament days and the order is different from the old testament. The Bible records that Daniel was praying and angel Michael came to rescue angel Gabriel. Today if an angel is arrested in the realm of the spirit, you don't have to wait for another angel to be released from heaven to free the arrested angel, you just have to speak words of authority. The words you say are always affecting things in the realm of the spirit.

## THE FEET OF THE DEER

Psalm 18:33 says "He makes my feet like the feet of deer."

#### What is the feet of deer?

- 1. It is the extraordinary ability to do what others cannot do.
- 2. It is the ability to do and move faster than others. The deer runs faster than all animals.
- 3. It is the energy to keep moving faster and not get tired. The deer never get tired of running.
- 4. It is a stability power for running faster. The deer never stumbles while running.
- 5. It is the ability to go farther faster than others in accomplishment and productivity. The deer can run to places and height other animals can't run or get to.
- 6. It is the ability to take leaps. The deer runs in leaps. What took others ten steps to achieve, you can do it once.
- 7. It is the ability to get to the top of the mountain and

- continue moving and leaping on the mountain. The deer is an expert at running up to the high hill.
- 8. It is the ability to escape from danger faster. No animal can run after the deer to attack it. Such animal will run in futility
- It is the ability that singles you out of competitions or strivings. No animal can compete running successfully with the deer.
- 10. It is the strategy that gets you into your future faster.
- 11. It is the ability and strategy to go past those ahead of you.

Habakuk 4:19 says "The Lord is my strength, He will make my feet like deer's feet..."

The fact is that with the deer's feet, you will also know a faster way to make things happen. Anyone whose feet has been made like a deer's feet by God will have the capacity to run and not stumble.

## **RUNNING LIKE A DEER**

To run like a deer is to run very fast. Anyone that runs like a deer is running at a great speed. Those who run like a deer are the ones that move in leaps. Such people can accomplish once the exact things that took others five years.

The deer is known for climbing high mountains, especially when trying to escape from a predator. Those who run like a deer are the ones that climb high mountains that scares others.

Running like a deer suggest accomplishing great results with speed. Anyone that achieve great feet in an extraordinary way have the deer's ability. The deer is always stable when running, it doesn't stumble. You should be such individual that get things accomplished with speed without stumbling.

There is a time to roar, there is another time to run. You should roar like a lion but run like a deer. You must be a lion at results but a deer at preparation. Anyone with deer's feet will not waste time preparing for great accomplishment.

A main quality of the deer is that it will never relax when running. I have discovered that those who relax in making

progress often reverse in making progress. The deer doesn't look back when running, but stick its eyes to the front. Those who always consider their past achievement will always lose the momentum to continue running.

To run like deer is to leap over obstacles. In times of crisis, you will always need the feet of deer to scamper across to the other side. When you run with deer's feet on high places, you live above your circumstances. God gives grace to press on to attain new height and experience great waves. It takes the swiftness of a deer to escape your enemies and gain freedom.

## THE THINKING OF A DEER

Whenever you see the deer running, it is either there is a predator or prey. The deer doesn't run all the time. But, the moment there is a signal that an animal is around, the next thought that comes to the mind of a deer is run. Whether it is the deer that is chasing another or the one being chased, the thought pattern in the deer is that it has to run. The deer is either running from something or running after something.

It doesn't matter the environment the deer finds itself, the moment it discovers an animal, the autosuggestion in its mind is one thing – run.

Those who have the thought pattern of the deer will always run. They either run from something or run after something. Many are slow in accomplishing great results because they don't think like the deer. It is as though there is need for the installation of the same inner voice in the deer that controls it to run. You cannot think like a deer and not develop the consciousness of speedy actions and accomplishment.

God is ready to help you but are you ready to run? You must

be programmed for speed. And the way that is done is to be dominated with the thought for speed — which is whatever I want to do, I must do fast. Whatever I want to achieve, I must achieve fast. Gone are the days you do things the way it is done; these are the days you have to creatively discover new ways to doing things.

Another great quality I discover in the deer is that it also thinks fast. The thinking of a deer also comes with speed. It is not only the feet of the deer that can run fast, the mind of the deer also thinks fast. Those who have the deer's quality will not only run fast, but think fast. Ideas, insights and strategies should always run in your mind with speed. Slow thinkers will always end up slow doers. How can you act fast when your mind hasn't conceived the actions to take fast? Until you think fast, you cannot move fast. Whether you like it or not, your feet will always move to the degree to which your mind move. The degree to which your mind moves will determine your actions.

To achieve great things faster in life, you must always hang around those who think fast. Anyone that moves with those who think like him or at his frequency will always have common or equal results. But when you move with those faster than you, you will also be faster in life. Those people may not talk with you because often, fast thinkers like that are not talkers but doers. This is where intelligence come to play. You now have to develop your intelligence to be able to observe them. They may not tell you what or how they think, but if you can observe them, you will soon discover what and how they think. People's action is the manifestation of what and how they think. The speed of their action is the manifestation of the speed of their thinking. Fast thinkers may not be good speakers but they are good decision makers. The deer doesn't talk to anyone when it's

#### THE THINKING OF A DEER

about to run, but we can see the quality of good decision making when it sets out to run. Henceforth, let your actions reveal that you are a good decision maker.

## THE JUMPING OF A DEER

The moment it comes to the mind of a deer to runs, the deer instantly jump. That is action. Anyone who doesn't know how to jump into action cannot run like a deer. The deer is not a thinker but a runner. The running part of it is its doing part. Those who jump into action like a deer are the ones that have the action of a deer.

If you are not swift into action, you cannot be like a deer. A deer is not just swift at running, but swift at jumping. Anyone that wants to be on the running side must be ready to move without delay. Your life will make sense when you are on the acting side. You can't accomplish great result fast when you are not ready to take action fast. Fast actions lead to fast outcome.

One of the many things I mastered early in my life is fast actions. The spirit of delay is the neighbor of those who delay actions. The spirit of delay may find it difficult to trap anyone that is intentional with actions. Those who jump into actions are the ones that end up leaping. How can you leap when you are not ready to jump? Your actions may be silent and secret,

#### THE JUMPING OF A DEER

but be fast with it. Delay actions leads to delay progress. The moment you identify what to do, jump into action immediately.

I have learned that we are delayed because of an action we delayed. It is not just needed to take action. It is about taking actions fast. The question you should ask now is that what do you need to do fast? You have to go beyond asking what do you need to do? The right question now is what do you need to do fast?

## HOW TO RUN LIKE A DEER

- 1. Identify what you want to do.
- 2. Set the kick off date and the deadline for finishing it
- 3. Write out the step by step actions to take
- 4. Identify the human resources needed.
- 5. State the role of each
- 6. State the deadline for each person's role
- 7. Lay out appropriate authority to report to.
- 8. Find out how you can accomplish your plans within the first quarter of your deadline.
- 9. Take actions fast.



## About the Author

Niyi Makinde is a leadership expert, quotient coach, consultant, author and a Christian minister with an apostolic calling.

His passion is to raise Christian ministers and leaders like himself, as well as to help organisations and businesses maximize their potentials.

Apostle Niyi Makinde has been in Christian ministry for over fifteen years. He is the President of Rebirth Global Church, a network of churches across the globe on a mission to empower believers to fulfill their God-given tasks on earth.

He is an apostolic oversight and covering for many other ministries, networks and churches.

## Also by Niyi Makinde

Apostle Niyi Makinde as an Author has written several insightful and powerful books, among which are:

- 1. Divine Instructions
- 2. 12 Laws of Divine Instructions
- 3. Breaking Life Code
- 4. Revolutionary Apostle
- 5. Power to Prosper
- 6. Power to Become
- 7. 53 Laws of Excellence
- 8. Church Shift
- 9. Business Sense
- 10. Dealing With Human Enemies
- 11. Wisdom For All Round
- 12. Wisdom Power
- 13. Prayer Force Volume 1
- 14. Multiply
- 15. Tithing
- 16. You are Different
- 17. Phronesis For Dating
- 18. Dating, Marriage and Sex
- 19. Managing Divine People
- 20. Power to Get Wealth
- 21. Spiritual Fatherhood
- 22. Managing Divine People
- 23. Understanding Honor
- 24. Flourish And Grow Volume 1
- 25. Faith Dimension Volume 1
- 26. Ministry Laws Volume 1

- 27. Secrets to Supernatural (Financial) Abundance
- 28. Your Reality Today ( Daily Devotional)